~ Tofield

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF TOFIELD to be held Monday,
September 8, 2025, 5:00 p.m., Town of Tofield Administration Building, Council
Chambers

1. Present

2. Call to Order

“As we gather here today, we acknowledge we are on Treaty 6 Territory and the
Homeland of the Métis. We pay our respect to the First Nations and Métis
ancestors of this place and reaffirm our relationship with one another.”

3. Adoption of Agenda

4. Minutes

(@) Minutes of the Public Hearing, of the Town of Tofield, held August 25,
2025.

(b)  Minutes of the Regular meeting of Council of the Town of Tofield held
August 25, 2025.

5. Financial
(a) Financial Statement for the month ending August 31, 2025.
(b)  Budget Report for the month ending August 31, 2025

(c)  Open Payables for the month of August and September 2025 in the
total amount of $485,593.34



AGENDA
September 8, 2025

6. Correspondence
e Letter from the Tofield and Area Health Services Foundation, Financial
Statements for the year ending March 31, 2025;
o Letter from Tyler Gandam, President, Alberta Municipalities,
recommendations on the Implementation of Bill 50 Changes.
7. Unfinished Business
(@)  Proposal of Community Standards Bylaw, A Bylaw of the Town of Tofield,

in the province of Alberta, to regulate neighbourhood nuisance, safety and
livability issues.

8. Closed Session

Section 21 — Harmful to Intergovernmental Relations - Freedom of Information
and Protection of Privacy Act.

9. Adjournment

2|



MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC HEARING OF COUNCIL OF
THE TOWN OF TOFIELD held Monday, August 25,
2025, Town of Tofield Administration Building
Council Chambers

PRESENT 1. Mayor Dueck; Councillors, Conquest, Martineau,
Tiedemann and Chehade; and Jeff Edwards Chief
Administrative Officer.

Also Present: Sian Match, Town of Tofield,
Administrative Manager, Kari Janzen, Tofield Mercury,
Laraine Stuart, Contracted Development Officer,
Rebecca Hamiliton-Tree, Tofield Mobile Home
Park.(Via TEAMS) Maureen Hamilton-Tree, Tofield
Mobile Home Park. (Via TEAMS).

PUBLIC HEARING 2. Mayor Dueck explained the prog the Public
Hearing.

Mayor Dueck introduced@ijle matte ard,
being arguments for aRg atai eld
Bylaw 1358, being an a nd Use

Bylaw 1316.

Mayor Due
hearing.

ADJOURNMENT 3.

MAYOR

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF TOFIELD held Monday, August 25, 2025, Town
of Tofield Administration Building Council Chambers

PRESENT 1. Mayor Dueck; Councillors, Martineau, Tiedemann,
and Chehade; Jeff Edwards, Chief Administrative Officer.

Also Present: Sian Match, Town of Tofield, Administrative
Manager, Kari Janzen, Tofield Mercury, Rebecca Hamilton-
Tree, Tofield Mobile Home Park, (Via TEAMS), Maureen
Hamilton-Tree, Tofield Mobile Home Park, (Via TEAMS),
Corey Popick, Chief Operating Officer, Claystone Waste,
(5:18 p.m.) Jackie Sargent, Communications Manager,
Claystone Waste (5:21 p.m.)

CALL TO ORDER 2. Mayor Dueck called the meeting tQ&#gler at 5:00 p.m.

We pay our respect to
ancestors of this place
one another”

ADOPTION OF 3. MOVED by
AGENDA approved

Add: ):

015-08-25
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MINUTES

(a MOVED by Chehade that the Minutes of the

gular meeting of Council of the Town of Tofield

h&id August 11, 2025, be approved as presented.
16-08-25
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

The following Correspondence was presented:

e Letter from the Honorable Dan Williams, Minister of
Municipal Affairs regarding Canada Communtiy-
Building Fund (CCBF) 2025.

MOVED by Tiedemann that the Correspondence be
received and filed.

17-08-25 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



Minutes of the Town of Tofield Regular Council Meeting
August 25, 2025

NEW BUSINESS 6. (@) Invitation to meet with Minister Dan Williams
at the 2025 Alberta Municipalities Fall Convention.

MOVED by Conquest that Administration secure an
opportunity for Mayor and Council to meet with
Minister Willimas at the 2025, Alberta Municipalities
Fall Convention.

18-08-25
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
(b) CN
ation work with
gotice issued
19-08-25
OUSLY
UNFINISHED
BUSINESS 7. (a) own of Tofield, in the
or the purpose of amending
ded, being the Land Use
onquest that Bylaw 1357 be given
20-08-25

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
MOVED by Tiedemann that Bylaw 1357 be given
third and final reading.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
Tofield Curling Club

MOVED by Martineau that the Administrative Report
be received and filed.

22-08-25

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Page | 2



Minutes of the Town of Tofield Regular Council Meeting
August 25, 2025

CLOSED SESSION 8. MOVED by Tiedemann that Council meet in Closed Session
At 5:19 p.m.to discuss matters under the Alberta FOIP Act
as follows:

Division 2, Section 16 — Business Interests of a Third Party
— Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.

23-08-25
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
Janzen left Council Chambers at 5:21 p.m.
M. Hamilton-Tree and R. Hamilton- left Chambers at
5:21p.m.
Popick and Sargent left Co ) 56 p.m.
MOVED by Chehade t on at
24-08-25
ADJOURNMENT 9, e meeting adjourn at 6:05 p.m
25-08-25 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MAYOR

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

Page |3



Net Balance at End of Previous Month
ADD:

Receipts for the Month
Debentures

Interest on Account
Cancel Cheques

Reverse Annual Fees M/C
Service Charge Reversal

Sub Total

LESS:

Disbursements for the Month
Utility Deposits

Debenture Payments
Service Charges

NSF Cheque

Cancel Receipt

Overdraft Interest

NET BALANCE AT END OF MONTH

Balance at End of Month from Statement

ADD:
0O/S Telebank
QIS e-Transfer
Outstanding Deposits
OIS Interac (Option Pay)
O/S Interac (Moneris)
Bank Error

Sub Total

LESS:

O/S Direct Deposit (Moneris Online)
Outstanding Cheques

0O/S Telebank

Bank Error

NET BALANCE AT END OF MONTH

TOWN OF TOFIELD
MONTHLY STATEMENT

MONTH ENDING AUGUST 31, 2025

General Account Investments Investment-Nesbitt Burns

1,837,187.05 0.00 2,124,309.15

2,224,561.25

5,958.84

4,067,707.14 0.00 2,124,309.15

529,999.00 0.00

251.17
794.21

3,636,662.76 . 0.00 2,124,309.15

3,538,767.13 0.00 2,124,309.15
44,443.34
105,845.09

7,989.53

3,697,045.09 0.00 2,124,309.15

5,688.62
154,693.71

3,536,662.76 0.00 2,124,309.15

0.00

THIS STATEMENT SUBMITTED TO COUNCIL THIS 8TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025.

CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIAL

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER

TOTAL

3,961,496.20

2,224,561.25
0.00
5,958.84
0.00

0.00

0.00

6,192,016.29

529,999.00
0.00

0.00
251.17
794.21
0.00

0.00

5,660,971.91

5,663,076.28

44,443.34
0.00
105,845.09
7,989.53
0.00

5,821,354.24

5,688.62
154,693.71
0.00

5,660,971.91



THE TOWN OF

> Tofleld

OPERATING REVENUES

1-01-000-00 Taxes & Grants in Lieu

1-02-000-00 General Municipal Revenues
1-12-000-00 Administration

1-26-000-00 Bylaw Enforcement

1-32-000-00 Roads, Streets, Walks, Lighting
1-33-000-00 Airport

1-41-000-00 Water Supply & Distribution
1-42-000-00 Sanitary Sewage & Treatment
1-43-000-00 Garbage Collection & Disposal
1-51-000-00 Family Community Support Services
1-56-000-00 Cemetery

1-66-000-00 Subdivision Land & Development
1-70-000-00 Community Develop. Administration
1-71-000-00 Tourism/Economic Development
1-72-000-00 Community Hall

1-73-000-00 Transportation Tofield Bus
1-74-000-00 Recreation Programs

1-76-000-00 Parks

1-75-000-00 Library

TOTAL: OPERATING REVENUES

erated: 2025-09-04 12:34:54 PM by A88SIAN

COUNCIL BUDGET
MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT
31-Aug-25

THIS
PERIOD

623.07
(25,913.32)
(2,638.25)
(90.00)
(400.19)
(111,464.44)
(9,674.06)
(10,684.34)
(82,870.62)
(400.00)

(2,325.00)
(245.00)
(824.14)

(6,466.64)

(253,372.93)

Page 1of 1

YEAR-TO
DATE

(3,860,475.90)

(208,472.27)
(122,228.47)
(3,690.00)
(28,039.24)
(8,568.47)
(903,112.74)
(81,510.05)
(85,656.15)
(349,233.13)
(15,575.00)

(11,000.00)
(32,549.17)
(12,240.00)
(18,736.40)

(9,676.63)
(17,127.21)

(5,767,890.83)

BUDGET

(3,861,099.00)

{461,000.00)
{237,440.00)
{48,100.00)
{70,439.00)
{20,208.00)

(1,333,810.00)

{147,500.00)
{126,200.00)
{(563,714.00)
{35,000.00)
{70,000.00)
{11,000.00)
{79,000.00)
{49,460.00)
{20,000.00)
(17,282.00)
(99,354.00)
{121,695.00)

(7,372,301.00)

VARIANCI

{623.10)
(252,527.73)
(115,211.53)

(44,410.00)
(42,399.76)
(11,639.53)
(430,697.26)
(65,989.95)
(40,543.85)
(214,480.87)
(19,425.00)
(70,000.00)
(46,450.83)
(37,220.00)
(1,263.60)
(7,605.37)
(82,226.79)
{121,695.00)

(1,604,410.17)

99.98
45.22
51.48

7.67
39.81
42.40
67.71
55.26
67.87
61.95
44.50

100.00
41.20
24.75
93.68
55.99
17.24

78.24



THE TOWN OF

f’r:uTofie_!d

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

2-11-000-00 Council & Other Legislative
2-12-000-00 General Administration
2-23-000-00 Fire Fighting & Preventative Servic
2-26-000-00 Bylaw Enforcement

2-32-000-00 Roads, Streets, Walks & Lighting
2-33-000-00 Airport

2-41-000-00 Water Supply & Distribution
2-42-000-00 Sanitary Sewage & Treatment
2-43-000-00 Garbage Collection & Disposal
2-51-000-00 Family Community Support Services
2-56-000-00 Cemetery

2-66-000-00 Subdivision Land & Development
2-70-000-00 Community Development Administratio
2-71-000-00 Tourism/Economic Development
2-72-000-00 Community Hall

2-73-000-00 Transportion Tofield Bus
2-74-000-00 Recreation Program

2-76-000-00 Parks

2-75-000-00 Library

2-99-750-00 School Requisition

2-99-752-00 Beaver Foundation Requisition
2-99-756-00 Designated Industrial Property

TOTAL: OPERATING EXPENDITURES

erated: 2025-09-04 12:34:54 PM by A88SIAN

COUNCIL BUDGET

31-Aug-25

THIS

PERIOD

4,877.78
83,838.15

8,006.25
61,641.81
1,935.50
101,803.82
9,715.16
9,064.00
34,126.85
1,979.03
14,278.04
4,323.04
3,318.25
2,861.02
11,188.40
52,445.46
5,103.58

33,760.07

444,266.21

Page 1of1

MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT

55,429.33
886,367.42
193,615.34

47,488.38
710,365.75

7,203.46
757,838.85

95,964.38

63,448.00
306,143.44

19,302.05
111,438.73

73,689.47

33,727.30

28,661.71

33,869.08
328,601.57
106,221.77
353,779.82
101,280.21

4,314,436.06

BUDGET

97,200.00
1,178,568.00
387,230.00
188,957.00
1,230,025.00
19,900.00
1,301,023.00
172,480.00
108,768.00
563,714.00
28,795.00
70,000.00
171,495.00
127,350.00
59,240.00
26,000.00
45,200.00
493,510.00
199,952.00
767,277.00
135,040.00
454.00

7,372,178.00

VARIANCE

41,770.67
292,200.58
193,614.66
141,468.62
519,659.25

12,696.54
543,184.15

76,515.62

45,320.00
257,570.56

9,492.95

70,000.00

60,056.27

53,660.53

25,512.70

(2,661.71)

11,330.92
164,908.43

93,730.23
413,497.18

33,759.79

454.00

3,057,741.94

57.03
75.21
50.00
25.13
57.75
36.20
58.25
55.64
58.33
54.31
67.03

64.98
57.86
56.93
110.24
74.93
66.59
53.12
46.11
75.00

58.52



\ _ meoumr COUNCIL BUDGET
- Tofield MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT
o 31-Aug-25

THIS YEAR-TO

PERIOD DATE BUDGET VARIANCE

FINANCES ACQUIRED

5-32-000-00 Roads, Streets, Walks, Lighting - - (987,500.00) (987,500.00) -
5-42-000-00 Sanitary Sewage & Treatment - - (18,000.00) (18,000.00) -
5-72-000-00 Community Hall - - (15,000.00) (15,000.00) -
5-76-000-00 Parks - - (175,000.00) (175,000.00) -
TOTAL: FINANCES ACQUIRED - - {1,195,500.00) (1,195,500.00) -

FINANCES APPLIED

6-32-000-00 Roads, Streets, Walks, Lighting 2,500.00 98,431.39 987,500.00 889,068.61 9.97
6-42-000-00 Sanitary Sewage & Treatment - 21,990.00 18,000.00 (3,990.00) 122.17
6-66-000-00 Subdivision Land & Development - 507,870.00 - (507,870.00) -
6-72-000-00 Community Hall - - 15,000.00 15,000.00 -
6-76-000-00 Parks 20,956.62 150,552.45 175,000.00 24,447.55 86.03
TOTAL: FINANCES APPLIED 23,456.62 778,843.84 1,195,500.00 416,656.16 65.15

erated: 2025-09-04 12:34:54 PM by A88SIAN Page 1of 1



August 2025 Advances Stub 13642 - 13661 $18,450.00
August 2025 Payroll Stub 13687 — 13717 $99,835.26
August 2025 Council Stub 13718 - 13722 $4,319.06

Total $122,604.32



09/04/25

Function

12

23

26

32

12:49:10

Date

25/09/02
25/08/18
25/08/29
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/08/18
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/02
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/08/22
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/08/22
25/09/02
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/22
25/08/25
25/08/29
25/08/29

25/09/05
25/09/05

25/08/22

25/08/18
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/09/02

Account Number

(Including
Delimeters)

2-12-211-00
2-12-215-00
2-12-215-00
2-12-215-00
2-12-215-00
2-12-220-00
2-12-220-00
2-12-220-00
2-12-220-00
2-12-221-00
2-12-230-00
2-12-230-00
2-12-230-00
2-12-230-01
2-12-230-01
2-12-230-02
2-12-230-02
2-12-235-00
2-12-240-00
2-12-240-00
2-12-250-00
2-12-250-00
2-12-510-00
2-12-510-00
2-12-540-50
2-12-540-51
2-12-771-00
4-12-230-00
4-12-234-00
4-12-239-00

2-23-770-00
2-23-770-00

2-26-260-00

2-32-215-00
2-32-520-00
2-32-520-43
2-32-520-54

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES LISTING BY FUNCTION

Reference
Number

AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB
Cc900013730
C900013750
c000016987
AP DRCT DB
900013682
C900013674
900013754
900013675
Cs800013677
€900013755
Cc900013753
AP DRCT DB
C900013745
C900013759
C900013759
C900013678
Cc900013725
900013729
900013739
C900013739
C900013681
AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB
€900013680
AP DRCT DB
Cc900013728
Cc900013732

C900013738
900013738

C900013684

AP DRCT DB
C000016980
C900013745
AP DRCT DB

Transaction
Description

BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

TELUS MOBILITY

PITNEYWORKS

LOOMIS EXPRESS

GOVERNMENT OF ALBERTA

WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FINANCE
TOFIELD MERCURY PUBLISHING LTD
RGO TECHNOLOGIES INC.
SHINEATEK CORP.

SHINEATEK CORP.

STUART, LARAINE

TANMAR CONSULTING INC.
REYNOLDS MIRTH RICHARDS & FARM
BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

GREGG DISTRIBUTORS

ZAG CREATIVE GROUP INC.

ZAG CREATIVE GROUP INC.

THE INSPECTIONS GROUP INC.
DEMERS, ELISA

PIDERNAL, MARY GRACE

CANADIAN LINEN AND UNIFORM
CANADIAN LINEN AND UNIFORM
TOFIELD AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY
BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
TOFIELD & AREA HEALTH SERVICES
RECEIVER GENERAL

LOCAL AUTHORITIES PENSION PLAN
TOWN OF TOFIELD SOCIAL FUND

BEAVER EMERGENCY SERVICES COMM
BEAVER EMERGENCY SERVICES COMM

TOWN OF VEGREVILLE

TELUS MOBILITY

NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD
GREGG DISTRIBUTORS

BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

Transaction
Description
Additional

BILLINGS

BUSINESS CONNECT - ADMIN
ACCT 6100908000118935
FREIGHT/ RMRF

LAND TITLES

COPIER LEASE

AD/ RCMP SALUTE

COPIES

MANAGED SERVICES
MICROSOFT 365

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
ASSESSMENT SERVICES
GENERAL MATTERS
BILLINGS

SPARK PLUG PLUG STATION
SOCIAL MEDIA STRATEGY
WEBSITE MAINTENANCE
SAFETY PERMITS
JANITORIAL - ADMIN
JANITORIAL - ADMIN
RUGS

RUGS

POP & COFFEE

BILLINGS

POWER - ADMIN BLDG

GAS - ADMIN BLDG
REQUISITION/ $4 CAPITA

REMITTANCE
EMP #215 - REMITTANCE
REMITTANCE
FUNCTION
TOTAL
3Q CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION
3Q OPERATING CONTRIBUTION
FUNCTION
TOTAL
BYLAW ENFORCEMENT
FUNCTION
TOTAL
BUSINESS CONNECT - OPERATIONS
BILLINGS
JACK GUIDE KIT
BILLINGS

PAGE

Transaction
Amount

42.83
359.50
1,009.76
34.72
2.00
943.50
200.00
192.42
2,193.10
7,929.60
1,296.25
2,108.79
826.00
116.01
127.55
2,500.00
350.00
548.73
350.00
350.00
61.39
61.39
418.48
22.99
1,734.12
39.39
8,486.75
2,100.00
21,696.99
200.00

56,302.26
35,136.80
61,670.87

96,807.67

7,556.25

7,556.25

35.95
57.23
26.93
56.94

1



09/04/25

Function

32

33

41

42

12:49:10

Date

25/08/22
25/09/05
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/18
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/02
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/08/22
25/08/29
25/09/05
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/22

25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/29

25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/09/05
25/09/05

25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/29

Account Number

(Including
Delimeters)

2-32-520-58
2-32-520-58
2-32-520-59
2-32-520-62
2-32-520-71
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-00
2-32-530-02
2-32-530-03
2-32-530-03
2-32-530-03
2-32-540-50
2-32-540-51
6-32-610-03

2-33-250-00
2-33-250-00
2-33-540-50
2-33-540-51

2-41-215-00
2-41-225-00
2-41-250-00
2-41-250-00
2-41-540-50
2-41-540-51
2-41-550-00
2-41-550-00

2-42-215-00
2-42-215-00
2-42-540-50

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES LISTING BY FUNCTION

Reference
Number

C000016980
C900013747
C000016980
C000016580
C000016978
AP DRCT DB
Cc000016980
900013674
AP DRCT DB
900013758
C900013740
C900013745
C900013739
C900013739
C900013743
C900013686
C900013724
900013758
AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB
€000016979

C900013725
900013729
AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB

C900013670
C900013663
C900013662
900013745
AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB
C3900013746
C900013746

C900013670
C900013666
AP DRCT DB

Transaction
Description

NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL INC.
NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD

NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD

D & D SERVICE CENTRE

WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FINANCE
NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD

RGO TECHNOLOGIES INC.

BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

TRU HARDWARE

CANADIAN NATIONAL

GREGG DISTRIBUTORS

CANADIAN LINEN AND UNIFORM
CANADIAN LINEN AND UNIFORM
DRIVEN TRANSPORT INC
UNIVERSAL FENCE LTD.

BORDER PAVING LTD.

TRU HARDWARE

ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
FISHER HILL TREE COMPANY

DEMERS, ELISA

PIDERNAL, MARY GRACE

ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR

MCSNET

ALBERTA WATER & WASTEWATER OPE
ACCU-FLO METER SERVICE LTD.
GREGG DISTRIBUTORS

ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
AI.BERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
HIGHWAY 14 REGIONAL WATER
HIGHWAY 14 REGIONAL WATER

MCSNET
BELL MOBILITY
ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR

PAGE

Transaction Transaction
Description Amount
Additional
BILLINGS 51.58
ACCT 82000-54551 313.51
BILLINGS 29.63
BILLINGS 32.99
HUB BEARING ASSEMBLY 336.44
COPIER LEASE 391.50
BILLINGS 261.42
COPIES 12.76
BILLINGS 185.88
BILLINGS 63.99
GATES MAINTENANCE 403.50
SURVEY FLAGS 33.64
RUGS 39.45
RUGS 39.45
3/4 & 1 1/2 CRUSH 1,500.00
BLACK FENCE 230.00
COLD MIX 1,333.80
BILLINGS 35.37
POWER - PUBLIC WORKS 13,676.98
GAS - PUBLIC WORKS 60.76
REMOVE GREEN ASH 2,500.00

FUNCTION

TOTAL 21,709.70
JANITORIAL - AIRPORT 50.00
JANITORIAL - AIRPORT 50.00
POWER - AIRPORT 133.63
GAS - AIRPORT 51.87

FUNCTION

TOTAL 285.50
CUST 0054024/ INTERNET 109.90
LEVEL II WATER / RAY 460.00
WATER METER TEST/ 65480.02 195.00
SURVEY FLAGS 13.81
POWER - WATER STORAGE 2,283.02
WATER STORAGE 311.88
ACCT 371341.01 39,320.06
ACCT 395431.01 54,837.90

FUNCTION

TOTAL 97,531.57
CUST 0054024/ INTERNET 69.90
ACCT 528927011/ CELL PHONES 8.03
POWER - SEWER 1,207.66

2



09/04/25

Function

43

51

66

71

12:49:10

Date

25/09/05

25/08/18
25/08/18
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/02
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/08/29
25/09/05
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/09/02

25/08/29

25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/29

Account Number

(Including
Delimeters)

2-43-550-00

2-51-215-00
2-51-215-00
2-51-245-00
2-51-245-00
2-51-400-00
2-51-400-01
2-51-400-01
2-51-400-01
2-51-400-03
2-51-400-03
2-51-400-04
2-51-400-06
2-51-400-07
2-51-400-11
2-51-400-11
2-51-400-11
2-51-400-11
2-51-400-11
2-51-400-11
2-51-400-11
2-51-400-14
2-51-400-14
2-51-400-14
2-51-400-14
2-51-510-00

4-66-480-00

2-71-240-00
2-71-240-00
2-71-240-00
2-71-240-00
2-71-540-50
2-71-540-51

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES LISTING BY FUNCTION

Reference
Number

900013742

AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB
900013725
C900013729
C900013667
C900013681
C900013685
AP DRCT DB
C900013667
C900013756
C900013727
C900013757
C900013682
C900013667
C900013682
€900013683
C900013758
900013752
900013748
C900013749
C300013667
C800013667
Cc900013682
C000016986
AP DRCT DB

C900013734

C900013725
C€900013725
900013729
€900013729
AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB

Transaction
Description

CLAYSTONE WASTE LTD.

TELUS MOBILITY

WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FINANCE
DEMERS, ELISA

PIDERNAL, MARY GRACE

HARE FOODS LTD.

TOFIELD AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY
UMPHREY, JAYLYNN S

BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

HARE FOODS LTD.

TOFIELD AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY
IRVINE, CHARLENE

TOFIELD LODGE

TOFIELD MERCURY PUBLISHING LTD
HARE FOODS LTD.

TOFIELD MERCURY PUBLISHING LTD
TOFIELD PACKERS

TRU HARDWARE

MALARSKI, AMBER

KELLER, TOM

LAING, ELAINE

HARE FOODS LTD.

HARE FOODS LTD.

TOFIELD MERCURY PUBLISHING LTD
BEAVERHILL PHARMACY

BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

WILD ROSE CO-OPERATIVE ASSOCIA

DEMERS, ELISA

DEMERS, ELISA

PIDERNAL, MARY GRACE

PIDERNAL, MARY GRACE

ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR

Transaction
Description
Additional

GARBAGE COLLECTION

BUSINESS CONNECT - FCSS
COPIER LEASE
JANITORIAL - FCSS
JANITORIAL - FCSS
ACCOUNT 7506990

POP, CHIPS & CANDY
PIZZA / YOUTH DROP IN
BILLINGS

ACCOUNT 7506990

MTG ROOM RENTAL/ FCSS
GENERAL COUNSELLOR
MEALS ON WHEELS

AD/ RCMP SALUTE
ACCOUNT 7506390

AD/ SC VOLUNTEERS NEEDED
BEEF/ SC

BILLINGS

SC/ MILEAGE

sc/ MILEAGE

sc/ MILEAGE

ACCOUNT 7506990
ACCOUNT 75069390

AD/ TOOLS FOR SCHOOL
TOOLS FOR SCHOOL
BILLINGS

REPAYMENT/ LANDSCAPE BOND

JANITORIAL - NATURE CENTRE

EXTRA CLEANING

JANITORIAL - NATURE CENTRE

EXTRA CLEANING
POWER - NATURE CENTRE
GAS - NATURE CENTRE

FUNCTION
TOTAL

FUNCTION
TOTAL

FUNCTION
TOTAL

FUNCTION

TOTAL

PAGE

Transaction
Amount

1,285.59
9,064.00

9,064.00

143.80
135.00
50.00
50.00
15.59
132.51
62.95
44.00
47.09
330.00
2,255.00
516.00
42.00
15.93
329.00
28.18
26.97
31.70
108.95
79.24
135.65
21.77
269.00
52.98
144.00

5,067.31
34,500.00

34,500.00

150.00
180.00
150.00
180.00
484 .28
68.77

3



09/04/25

Function

72

73

74

75

76

12:49:10

Date

25/08/29
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/29
25/08/29

25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/09/05
25/09/05

25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/08/29
25/08/29
25/09/02

25/08/29
25/08/29
25/08/29

25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/05
25/08/29
25/09/05
25/08/22
25/08/29
25/09/02

Account Number

(Including
Delimeters)

2-72-240-00
2-72-250-00
2-72-255-00
2-72-540-50
2-72-540-51

2-73-251-00
2-73-251-00
2-73-251-00
2-73-251-00
2-73-251-00
2-73-251-00
2-73-251-00
2-73-251-00

1-74-400-10
1-74-400-10
1-74-400-10
2-74-400-03
2-74-400-03
2-74-400-03

2-75-230-00
2-75-240-00
2-75-240-00

2-76-215-01
2-76-250-00
2-76-250-01
2-76-250-02
2-76-250-02
2-76-250-03
2-76-250-04
2-76-250-04

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES LISTING BY FUNCTION

Reference
Number

C900013733
C300013665
C900013673
AP DRCT DB
AP DRCT DB

€000016980
C900013666
C900013668
C900013676
C900013669
€3900013741
C900013744
900013751

Cc900013681
C900013681
C900013758
Cc000016983
C000016982
AP DRCT DB

€900013723
C900013725
C900013729

C300013670
C000016980
900013758
AP DRCT DB
900013758
€c000016981
C900013726
AP DRCT DB

Transaction
Description

VMJ CUSTODIAL SERVICES INC.
BARDO LUTHERAN CHURCH

PLATINUM SUPPLY 2022 LTD.
ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR

NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD
BELL MOBILITY

KILSTROM, JILL

SMITH, ROBERT
MACPHERSON, ANDREW
CHEHADE, BRENDA
FORSTNER, DORIS
MACPHERSON, ANDREW

TOFIELD AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY
TOFIELD AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY
TRU HARDWARE

MCGALE, ISABELLE

HOLDEN RURAL ACADEMY SOCIETY
BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

BECHER MUNRO & COMPANY
DEMERS, ELISA
PIDERNAL, MARY GRACE

MCSNET

NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD

TRU HARDWARE

ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES COR
TRU HARDWARE

TOFIELD TRANSIT MIX LTD.

DODD, LORI

BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

Transaction

Description

Additional
FUNCTION
TOTAL

HALL CARETAKER

PROMENADE CLEAN UP

HAND TOOLS & TOILET PAPER

POWER - COMMUNITY HALL

GAS - COMMUNITY HALL
FUNCTION
TOTAL

BILLINGS

ACCT 528927011/ CELL PHONES
SHUTTLE DRIVER/ AUG 1-15
SHUTTLE DRIVER/ AUG 1-15
SHUTTLE DRIVER 07/31-08/15
SHUTTLE DRIVER/ AUG 15-31
SHUTTLE DRIVER/ AUGUST
SHUTTLE DRIVER/ AUGUST 16-31

FUNCTION
TOTAL

RODEQO DANCE TICKET

SATURDAY RODEO

BILLINGS

SUMMER FLEX POSITION

BUS RENTAL

BILLINGS
FUNCTION
TOTAL

LIBRARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JANITORIAL - LIBRARY
JANITORIAL - LIBRARY

FUNCTION
TOTAL

CUST 0054024/ INTERNET
BILLINGS

BILLINGS

POWER - CAMPGROUND
BILLINGS

PAD/ BELVEDERE PARK
WATERING

BILLINGS

PAGE

Transaction
Amount

1,213.05

1,500.00
500.00
205.05
704.66

72.62

2,982.33

19.78
80.00
255.00
355.00
230.00
75.00
380.00

1,403.86

20.00
10.00
13.99
420.00
2,500.00
332.70

3,296.69

4,350.00
200.00
200.00

4,750.00

94.90
94 .45
15.60
575.05
35.16
672.50
1,800.00
100.00

4



09/04/25

Function

*

*

*

76

12:49:10

Date

25/09/05
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/09/02
25/08/22
25/08/22
25/08/29
25/09/05
25/08/22

Account Number

(Including
Delimeters)

2-76-250-04
2-76-250-05
2-76-250-05
2-76-250-05
2-76-250-05
2-76-520-00
2-76-520-00
2-76-520-00
2-76-520-00
6-76-630-03

END OF REPORT

*

*

*

Reference
Number

Cc900013758
Cco00016980
C900013671
C900013671
AP DRCT DB
C000016980
C900013679
C900013731
C900013747
900013672

Transaction
Description

TRU HARDWARE

NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD
NEUFELD, CINDY

NEUFELD, CINDY

BMO BANK OF MONTREAL

NAPA AUTO PARTS TOFIELD

THE LAWNMOWER HOSPITAL

THE LAWNMOWER HOSPITAL

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL INC.

PARK N PLAY DESIGN COMPANY LTD

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES LISTING BY FUNCTION

Transaction
Description
Additional

BILLINGS

BILLINGS

FENCING @ RIDING ARENA
FENCING @ RIDING ARENA
BILLINGS

BILLINGS

TRIMMER REPAIR

TRIMMER PARTS

ACCT 82000-54551
PLAYGROUND UPGRADE

PAGE

5

Transaction

Amount

39.
.27

15

569.
85.
.40
.35
127.
108.
111.
14,106.

932
63

FUNCTION
TOTAL

FINAL TOTALS

TOTAL 363,133

19,377.

98

93
00-

97
98
17
14

85

.63



Tofield and Area Health Services Foundation
Box 1153 Totield AB TOB 4J0

\

August 28, 2025

Town of Tofield Council
Box 30
Tofield. AB TOB 410

Dear Mayor Dueck:

Please find following this letter, a copy of the approved Financial Statements for the
Tofield and Area Health Services Foundation for our year ending March 31, 2025.

Since our last report to Council. we were able to help support health care in our region by
assisting in the purchase of the following items

- Office Chair Replacement Project - $9.614

- Crash Cart Medication Organizer - $1.230

- Bariatric Chairs for Waiting Rooms - $1.567

- Welch Allyn Monitor and Mobile Stand - $2.701

- Flowers and gardening supplies for LTC - $500

- Homecare and Public Health Window Coverings - $16.573

In June, our Health Foundation awarded a $1.000 scholarship to Kaitlyn Suchy from our
scholarship program promoting careers in health care. Also. our Health Foundation has
committed to allocating up to 25% of municipal grants we receive to the Community Attraction
and Retention Committee (CARC) to assist with their initiatives.

Our mission is to preserve and enhance the role of the Tofield Health Center and
associated providers of health care services to Tofield. Ryley. Holden, Beaver County and

surrounding communities.

On behalf of the Tofield and Area Health Services Foundation. thank you for providing
us with grant tunding for 2025.

Sincerely. b AL ,-’t K _

Brenda Chehade, Chair
Tofield & Area Health Services Foundation

Email: tofieldhealthfoundation/a gmail.com
Web: tofieldhealthfoundation.ca



August 12, 2025
T'o whom it may concern:
| have examined the tinancial records for the Tofield Health Foundation of

Tofield. AB and believe that they accurately depict the financial transactions -
for the fiscal year of 20242025,

May God continue to richly bless the Tofield Health Centre.

Donna Pope
Donna’s Tax Service



Totield and Area Heatth Services Foundation

Batance Sheet
March 31, 2025

Current Assets

ATB Communilty Spirit Account
BMO Community Account
BMO Casino Account

BMO Savings Account

Total Current Assets

Short Term (nvestments

GIC Investment

Rudzcki Trust

Total Short Term Investments
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Deterred Revenue

Totat Liabilities

Equity
Opening Balance
Net Income{Loss)

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

‘g - C'-"/LGJ\JL JLJ,;_

Brenda Chehade - Chalr

25,412.41
63,602.77
44,210.69
54,920.90

55,434.69
7.022.73

188,148.77

62,457.42

161.268.10

161,268.10

73,541.43
15,794.66

89,336.09

250.604.19



Revenue:

Totield and Area Health Services Foundation
Financial Statement
For the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Donations
Fundraising
nterest

Grant Funding

AHS High Potential

AHS CORE

Municipal
WinWin 50 Staft Lottery
Royal Alex Lottery
CARC

Total Revenue:

Expense:

Donations Expense
Fundraising Costs
Grant Funding Expense

AHS High Potential

AHS CORE

Alberta Culture

Municipat

WinWin 50 Staff Lottery Expense
Royal Alex Lottery Expense

CARC Expense

Total Expense:

Net Income(Loss)

8,485.25
11,142.08
3,428 46

0.00
4,234.63
41.278.46 45,513.09
12,058.22
0.00
7,823.00

88,450.10

5,301.83
6,231.60

0.00
4,234.63
0.00
41,278.46 45,513.09
12,058.22
0.00
3,550.70

72,655.44



Jeff Edwards

From: Tyler Gandam <president@abmunis.ca>

Sent: August 27, 2025 1:47 PM

To: Jeff Edwards

Subject: ABmunis recommendations on the implementation of Bill 50 changes
Attachments: ABmunis Submission to MA re Implementation of Bill 50 Changes 20250826.pdf

Dear Mayors, Councillors, and CAOs:

When the legislature passed Bill 50, the Municipal Affairs Statutes Amendment Act, 2025, we knew there would be
further engagements this summer on how the province would implement some of the changes to the Municipal
Government Act. On August 15, Municipal Affairs sent ABmunis and other municipai associations a series of
questions and then held an engagement meeting on August 18. Despite the short window for input, ABmunis
collected feedback from some members, and our Board approved the attached recommendations.

Key Messages based on ABmunis' Recommendations

We are sharing the following key messages to help you in any conversations that you have with provincial officials
on these matters.

Reporting to Council on the Use of Natural Person Powers
¢ The Government of Alberta should not implement a regulation that defines when the CAO must immediately
report to council on the municipality’s use of natural person powers.
¢ The responsibility for determining what and when the CAO should report should be left to the authority of
each council.
+ If the Government of Alberta wants to define when the CAO must report to council on the use of natural
person powers, then ABmunis has made some suggestions in their August 26 submission (attached).

Councillor Information Requests
o The MGA should be updated to require municipalities to have a policy for how information requests from
individual councillors are handled.
o Each municipality’s policy should define when an information request by a councillor requires the approval
by council.
e This policy will help ensure that municipal staff resources are focused on the priorities of council as a whole
and not tied up with one councillor’s interests.

Council Meeting Procedures to Manage Conflict

e Councils range in size so rules in one municipality may not work for another.

e Robert’s Rules of Order already provide significant guidance for managing meetings.

¢ Instead of creating a standard meeting procedure for every council, Municipal Affairs could define what
procedures must be addressed in each municipality’s procedural bylaw.

e We await the Government of Alberta to follow through on its commitment to engage on the creation of a
municipal ethics commissioner to deal with misconduct by councillors inside and outside of council
meetings.

If you have any questions about ABmunis’ input, please email

Thank you,

Tyler Gandam | President






Recommendations
oh Implementation of

Bill 50 Changes

| Alberta
® Municipalities

Strength
In Members

Submitted to Alberta Municipal Affairs

August 26, 2025

Security Classification: Public



Recommendations on Implementation of Bill 50 Changes

Table of Contents

Background

Natural Person Powers

Councillor Information Requests

Council Meeting Procedures

Final Thoughts

Summary of Recommendations

Security Classification: Public
Alberta Municipalities m Strength in Members



Recommendati mplementation Changes

Background

This report represents Alberta Municipalities (ABmunis) response to Municipal Affairs’ August 15, 2025 discussion
guide questions on potential considerations to implement changes to the Municipal Government Act made by Bill
50, the Municipal Affairs Statutes Amendment Act, 2025 regarding proposals to:

= Require the CAO to report to council on the use of natural person powers.
= Set standard procedures for councils to manage conflict in council meetings.
s Improve rules for managing information requests by councillors.

Natural Person Powers

Background from Municipal Affairs

The 2025 MGA amendments initially required CAOs to provide notice, in writing and to council, within 72 hours of
exercising any Natural Person Powers. Based on feedback from municipal stakeholders, this section was amended
to remove the reference to 72 hours, establish regulation making authority, and delay these sections coming into
force until proclamation to ensure sufficient time to put clear rules in place.

A potential policy approach is to create a very limited scope of CAO use of Natural Person Powers that would need to
be reported. Issues that would pot need to be reported to council are matters that are:

e Authorities contained in the CAO bylaw,

¢ Addressed in the emergency management bylaw,

e Previously approved by council in the budget, and

e Human resources matters, including seeking legal advice regarding personnel issues.

1.1. Would this scope ensure that only significant, “out of the norm” actions are reported to council?
ABmunis remains concerned that the proposal to mandate CAQ reporting on the use of natural person
powers opens the door for red tape and inefficient use of government workers’ time. It may be time-
consuming for municipal administrators to continually cross-reference the details of the CAO bylaw and
emergency management bylaw and annual budget to determine if the exact situation they are facing is
required to be reported to council within the timelines that are prescribed in the regulation. This is an
inefficient use of time, particularly if the matter is of little importance or relevance to council’s role in
governance.

The term ‘natural person powers' is not well understood and generally requires legal advice as to whether an
action by the municipality is a use of natural person powers. Administrators that are new to the municipal
sector will not understand if an action by the municipality is a use of natural person powers and may then
feel the need to go through the extra effort of reporting a matter to council regardless of its importance, just
to avoid breaking the law.

ABmunis recommends that:

The province repeal this provision from the MGA and maintain the status quo by deferring to the authority of
councils to determine the expected scope and timeliness of reporting of their CAO. This would then be
managed through any policies or agreements that relate to the performance of the CAO such as the CAO
bylaw, employment contract, or performance plan instead of legislation that applies to every CAO and
council.

Alberta Municipalities m Strength in Members



Recommendations mentati

Alternative Option

If the Government of Alberta is committed to legislating irregular situations where the CAO must report to
council, ABmunis would recommend excluding matters where the CAO/administration has authority based
on any council approved policy or bylaw, not just the CAO bylaw and emergency management bylaw.

To help strengthen the relationship between CAOs and councils, ABmunis and the Rural Municipalities of
Alberta are collaborating to develop resources for municipalities. This includes:
o A guide on best practices for CAO-council relationships.

¢ Launch a new course through the Elected Officials Education Program focused on Council’s Role in
the Employment of the CAO.

1.2. Given the scope, would reporting of such uses of Natural Person Powers within 72 hours be attainable? Why or
why not?
In larger municipalities, the CAO may delegate the reporting function to other staff and it may be challenging
to track every instance where natural person powers are used and where front-line staff may not recognize
the time urgency to report those instances to council.

In smaller municipalities, the CAO may be the only office administrator where a 72-hour deadline may not be
possible because the CAO works part time.

In addition, there are challenges with long weekends or circumstances where there are a variety of factors
competing for the CAQ’s time such as higher priority issues, off-site events, or personal circumstances.

It may be challenging to determine what triggers the start of the 72 hours and would some councillors
weaponize this against the CAO? For example, is it when the municipality has exercised those powers or
when the CAO becomes aware of the use of those powers?

ABmunis recommends that:

If the province is committed to legislating reporting on the use of natural person powers, then councils
should be required to pass a bylaw that prescribes the time period that the CAO must report to council to
ensure the time period works based on their local circumstances.

1.3. Would it be practicable to allow written notice of Natural Person Power use to be given by electronic methods
such as email? Why or why not?
Yes, but some municipalities may prefer other communication methods such as text or a written memo that
is published in the council agenda for transparency for the public.

Alberta Municipalities m Strength in Members



Recommendations ementation Changes

Councillor Information Requests

Background from Municipal Affairs

The 2025 MGA amendments established that CAOs must share information with a councillor as soon as practicable
once the information has been requested. If information is not shared due to personal privacy or confidentiality
reasons, the reason for not sharing must be provided to all councillors. Information must be provided to all other
councillors within 72 hours of the information being provided to the requesting councillor.

An approach to ensure guardrails are in place would be to delineate between information that is readily available
within the administration, versus information that will require staff time to conduct research and analysis. Requests
for new information that require significant staff time would need to be conducted through a council resolution.

2.1. Is it feasible to distinguish between ‘readily available’ and ‘new information'? Why or why not?
Yes, the policies used by some municipalities (e.g. City of Edmonton, City of Calgary, and City of Lethbridge)
demonstrate that it's feasible to distinguish when an information request exceeds a reasonable cost to the
municipality and when that is triggered, that council is required to approve the information request before
administration takes action. The cost of the information request can be measured based on the estimated
time and/or direct costs for staff to research and analyze the issue and prepare the information for the
councillor.

2.2. Do you have any additional thoughts or concerns about the approach?
Experience has shown that some councillors may regularly ask for information that can create a burden on
municipal administration, without the support of the majority of council. Therefore, there is merit in requiring
municipalities to pass a bylaw or policy that prescribes how information requests by a councillor are handied
and when the request warrants approval by the majority of council.

This may include defining:
e The process to submit a request.
e What criteria will trigger the need for a councillor’s individual request for information to be approved
by council.
o The period that administration has to complete the request or explain why a request cannot be met
within the standard time period.

2.3. Should there be a requirement for a formal request for information by a council meeting resolution, decision of
council, or request of council?
While some cities use a threshold of $2,000 to determine when council must approve an information
request, a lower amount would be more appropriate for smaller municipalities.

ABmunis recommends that:

That the MGA require municipalities to have a policy or bylaw for how councillor information requests are
handled and that the policy/bylaw should define when a request needs to be approved by council. This
ensures that the process works based on each municipality’'s administrative capacity and each council’s
expectations for how information requests by a councillor are handled.

Alberta Municipalities m Strength in Members



Recommendations ementation Changes

Council Meeting Procedures

Background from Municipal Affairs

The MGA establishes that a council may, by bylaw, establish functions and procedures for council and council
committee meetings. Many municipalities have opted to pass a meeting procedures bylaw because it establishes
processes and clarifies expectations for council, administration, and the public. items typically seen in municipal
procedural bylaws include procedural rules, committee membership, public hearings, quorum, absences, and
electronic meetings.

Recent amendments to the MGA allow the Minister of Municipal Affairs to establish standard meeting procedures
through Ministerial Order. A policy approach would be to only establish procedures to affirm the authority of the chair
to deal with councillor behaviour within a council meeting.

3.1. Could adding responsibility for the mayor/reeve to ensure meeting procedures are followed and in-meeting
disputes are addressed help address councillor conflict? Why or why not?
It would be important to define if the special responsibilities will be specific to the mayor/reeve or apply to
whoever is serving as the chair. In some cases, mayors or reeves are not the chair of each council
committee and having additional authorities outside of being a member of the committee could create
additional conflicts.

If the reference to mayor/reeve is to their role as chair, there are many existing best practices within
parliamentary procedures that outline the role of the chair. Within Roberts Roles of Order, the chair is seen
as a facilitator of discussion and decision-making process, not the sole decision maker. The core
responsibilities of the chair include opening and closing meetings, announcing business, recognizing
speakers, amongst many other responsibilities that ensure the fair, efficient and clear management of
meetings.

A key part of this responsibility of the chair is to ensure procedures are followed, decorum is maintained, and
in-meeting disputes and behaviour are managed according to the agreed to procedures. Chairs are regularly
called on to rule on procedure. There is also usually a way for members to challenge these rulings, if a
member of the assembly (council or committee) does not agree with the ruling, and ultimately it is up to the
assembly to vote on whether to uphold the decision of the chair.

Currently there is the ability of each municipality to develop a procedures bylaw if they deem necessary, and
this enables each municipality to develop procedures that reflect their unique needs, the size of their
council, and past precedence built up over many years.

ABmunis recommends that:
Mandate that each municipality’s procedural bylaw include:
s A procedure for the chair to manage in-meeting disputes, including the ability of the chair to rule on
procedure (e.g., points of privilege, points of order, out of order motions, etc.), and
=  The ability of the councif or committee to appeal the chair’s rulings if they deem necessaty.

3.2. How should council meeting procedures address situations when the mayor/reeve is part of the conflict?
As noted above, often councils have existing procedural bylaws or apply parliamentary procedures such as
Roberts Rules. There are common rules that enable council and/or committees to keep a balance between
the power of the chair (mayor/reeve) and the members of council or committee as a whole. This includes the
ability to challenge the ruling of the chair by the wider assembly which is important to ensure the chair is not
overstepping in their role.

Alberta Municipalities m Strength in Members



Recommendations lementation

The chair is meant to maintain impartiality and if there is a conflict of which the chair is a party to, the
assembly can temporarily appoint a different member as the presiding officer and/or the chair can pass the
role to another member for the duration of the item where there is a conflict.

ABmunis recommends that:

Municipal Affairs require that each municipality’s procedural bylaw either defer to Robert’s Rules of Order or
include a procedure for when a chair is directly involved in an in-meeting conflict.

3.3. Shouid the meeting chair have the authority to eject a councillor from a meeting? If so, should this require a
supermajority vote of council (a specified proportion of votes greater than a simple majority)?

There are existing options for how to manage the potential need to eject a member of council from a
meeting if deemed necessary. Given the role of council and the elected nature of these roles, it is important
to have clear steps to outline how to and why a member of council could be ejected. For example, it should
not be for expressing an opinion that is different from others in the meeting, but amount to harassment or
something more concerning and ejection should be considered only as a last resort. It is important if the
chair has the power to eject a member of council, that the decision is appealable by the assembly. This
would be in line with Roberts Rules ability to challienge or appeal the decision of the chair. Given the need to
ensure this power is not overly used or abused, Municipal Affairs provide guidance on the limitations of when
this power to eject members be used. Given that some councils can have as few as three members a
supermajority should not be required in any appeal of the chair’s ruling.

ABmunis recommends that:

Municipal Affairs require that each municipality’s procedural bylaw include a procedure for managing the
temporary ejection of a councillor when there is a serious breach of conduct that is threatening to members
of council or the proceedings of council business. Municipal Affairs should ensure that this decision by the
chair is able to be appealed by council or committee and provide clear guidance on when this power should
be exercised by the chair.

3.4. Are there other elements that could be added to council meeting procedures to prevent, mitigate, or address
councillor conflict?
Sometimes the issue is not the exact procedure, but rather the capacity of each council to manage conflicts.
Rather than focusing on specific procedures, councils could benefit from training on general parliamentary
procedures. This could demystify meeting procedures and clarify that even a motion such as appealing a
ruling of the chair does not have to be combative but rather is another step in good governance.

Alberta’s Elected Officials Education Program already offers a course on Effective Meetings. With financial
support, the curriculum of this course could be updated to include additional guidance on managing
conflicts. In addition, ABmunis would be open to working with Municipal Affairs and other municipal
associations on a procedural bylaw guide to support municipalities in adopting practical and effective
meeting procedures and practices.

3.5. Are there other common elements of meeting procedures which should be standardized across the province to
reduce the potential for councilor conflict?

Rather than standardizing specific procedures it might be more effective to outline the requirement to have
a procedural bylaw and what elements must be included in these bylaws. This would enable municipalities to
have procedural rules that meet their needs based on the unique size of each council.

Experience has shown that conflict and misconduct take place inside and outside of council meetings and

therefore, a procedural bylaw for how council meetings are run will only address part of the issue. We note
that our recommendations are made based on the expectation that the Government of Alberta will follow

Alberta Municipalities m Strength in Members



Recommendations entation Changes

through on its commitment to engage on the creation of an independent municipal ethics commissioner to
assist councils to manage cases of serious misconduct by councillors.

Again, a guide that includes examples of best practices and lessons learned may be more effective at
enhancing the capacity of municipalities to adopt effective procedural bylaws than overly prescriptive
legislation that may not meet the needs of Alberta’s diverse municipalities.

Final Thoughts

Timelines for Engagement

ABmunis strongly encourages Alberta Municipal Affairs to provide materials for engagements at least one
week prior to any meetings.

For context, Municipal Affairs provided the discussion guide questions on a Friday afternoon for a meeting
being held on the following Monday, giving less than 8 hours of regular office hour time for review on matters
that will have a significant impact on the operations of all municipal governments. The discussion guide
included questions that had not been previously considered by ABmunis and therefore offered minimal time
for evaluation with members and subject matter experts.

ABmunis encourages Alberta Municipal Affairs to consider what processes or capacity challenges can be
improved to provide adequate time for municipalities and partners to meaningfully participate in
engagements and come to the table with valuable solutions.

Summary of Recommendations

Reporting on the Use of Natural Person Powers
1. That the province repeal this provision and maintain the status quo by deferring to the authority of
councils to determine the expected scope and timeliness of reporting by their CAO.

2. If the province is committed to legislating reporting on the use of natural person powers, then ABmunis
recommends that:

a. The province exclude reporting for matters where the CAO/administration has authority based on
any council approved policy or bylaw, not just the CAO bylaw and emergency management bylaw.
Matters that were approved in the budget and human resources matters should also be
excluded from reporting by the CAO unless the CAO sees merit in communicating with council.

b. Each council should prescribe the time period that the CAO must report to council to ensure
alignment with each municipality's administrative capacity and local context.

¢. Each council should prescribe the form in which the CAO must report to council on the use of
natural person powers (e.g. text, email, memo, etc.).

Councillor Information Requests
3. That the province require municipalities to have a policy or bylaw that defines:
a. How a councillor must submit an information request,
b. What criteria will trigger the need for a councillor’s request for information to be approved by
council, and
¢. The time period that administration has to complete the request and the process for reporting to
council when a request cannot be met within the standard time period.

Alberta Municipalities m Strength in Members



ndations on Implementation anges

Council Meeting Procedures

4. If the province is committed to creating standardization across council meeting procedures, ABmunis
recommends that Municipal Affairs require that procedure bylaws be created by each municipality and
include specific types of procedures that must be included but not specify the procedures themselves.

The required procedures in the bylaw could include, but are not limited to:

a. The role of the chair in managing an in-meeting conflict, including how the council or committee
can appeal the ruling of the chair.

b. When the chair must cede the chair to another member due to their involvement in an in-
meeting conflict.

c. If, when and how a member could be ejected from a meeting for misconduct, including that the

chair’s decision to eject a councillor be appealable by council, and provide clear guidance on the
limited situations when this power should be used.

Alberta Municipalities m Strength in Members



i .Alberta

= =" Municipalities
Strength
In Members

300, 8616 51 Avenue
Edmonton, AB TGE 6E6
780.433.4431 » 310.MUNI

abmunis.ca

Security Classification: Public



THIS BYLAW NO. XXXX OF THE TOWN OF TOFIELD, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA TO
REGULATE NEIGHBOURHOOD NUISANCE, SAFETY AND LIVABILITY ISSUES.

WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. M-26, authorizes a Council to pass
bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the safety, health and welfare of people and the
protection of people and property;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act authorizes a Council to pass bylaws for
municipal purposes respecting nuisances, including unsightly property;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act authorizes a Council to pass bylaws for
municipal purposes respecting people, activities and things in, on or near a public place or a
place that is open to the public;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act authorizes a Council to pass bylaws for
municipal purposes respecting the enforcement of bylaws made under the Municipal
Government Act or any other enactment;

AND WHEREAS the Safety Codes Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. S-1 authorizes a Council to pass
bylaws respecting minimum maintenance standards for buildings and structures and
unsightly or derelict buildings or structures;

NOW THEREFORE the Council for the Town of Tofield, in the Province of Alberta, duly
assembled, enact as follows:

PART | - DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
1.  SHORTTITLE
1.1 This bylaw shall be cited as the Community Standards Bylaw.
2. DEFINITIONS
In this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires:

2.1 Boulevard means that part of a Highway that:
(a) is not a roadway; and

(b) is that part of the Sidewalk that is not especially adapted to the use of or
ordinarily used by pedestrians, and includes the undeveloped road
allowance adjacent to a laneway;,

2.2 Building means anything constructed or placed on, in, over, or under land
whether or not it is affixed to that land;

2.3 Bully or Bullying means the intentional, repeated, and hostile or demeaning
behaviour of an individual or group based on, but not limited to, ability, race,
religious belief, ethnicity, age, gender, or sexual orientation/identity, either
directly or indirectly, through any medium whatsoever, where the behaviour
results in physical, emotional, or mental harm, fear, or distress to one or more
individuals, and includes Cyber Bullying;

2.4 Camp or Camping means the act of locating of, erecting of or use of a Camping
Unit for the provision of sleeping accommodation and includes sleeping overnight
or any portion thereof in the open air.

2.5 Camping Unit means a tent, trailer, fifth wheel, truck camper, motor home,
camperized van, or other Recreational Vehicle or Motor Vehicle used as a shelter
while Persons Camp or in conjunction with Camping.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 1 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAQ'S
Initials




2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.1

212

213

2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

Cannabis has the meaning given to that term in the Cannabis Act, S.C. 2018, c.
16;

CAO means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Town of Tofield or their
delegate;

Cyber Bullying means the use of electronic communication or any other media to
Bully a person or group;

Electronic Smoking Device means a battery-operated device that can be used to
deliver a vapour, emission or aerosol to the person inhaling from the device,
including but not limited to an electronic cigarette, cigar, cigarillo or pipe;

Enforcement Officer means any sworn member of the Royal Canadian Mounted
Police (RCMP), a Peace Officer or Community Peace Officer appointed under the
Peace Officer Act, S.A. 2016, c. P35 and amendments thereto and employed by
the Town or a Bylaw Enforcement Officer employed or contracted by the Town.

Graffiti means words, letters, symbols, marks, figures, drawings, inscriptions,
writings, or stickers that are applied, etched, sprayed, painted, drawn, stained,
scribbled, or scratched on a surface without the consent of the property owner,
and for greater certainty does not include anything authorized by law;

Graffiti Instruments means a tool used for the purpose of creating Graffiti;

Highway has the same meaning as in the Traffic Safety Act, R.S.A. 2000, ¢. T-6 and
amendments thereto;

Holiday means New Years Day, Alberta Family Day, Good Friday, Victoria Day,
Canada Day, Heritage Day, Labour Day, Thanksgiving Day, Remembrance Day,
Christmas Day, and Boxing Day of every year;

Indecent Act means sexual or lewd activity in a Public Place;

Loiter means to linger aimlessly in or about a Public Place or to stand idly around
or dawdle creating an obstruction by rendering impassable any street, road,
Sidewalk, or other area of public passage;

Liguor has the meaning set out in the Gaming, Liquor and Cannabis Act, R.S.A.
2000, c. G-1, and amendments thereto;

Minor means a person under the age of eighteen (18) years of age;

MGA means the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. M-26 and
amendments thereto;

Motor Vehicle has the same meaning as in the Traffic Safety Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.
T-6 and amendments thereto;

Municipal Tag means a tag or similar document issued by the Town pursuant to
the MGA;

Nuisance means any use of or activity on land which unreasonably interferes
with a Person’s use and enjoyment of Property or demonstrates a disregard for
the general maintenance and upkeep of Property to produce a material
annoyance, inconvenience, or discomfort to other Persons, whether it is
detrimental to the surrounding area, some examples of which include, but are
not limited to, the following:

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 2 of 18

CAO'S
Initials

Mayor's
Initials




detrimental to the surrounding area, some examples of which include, but are
not limited to, the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

(i)

0)

(k)

(V)

(m)

2.24 Occupy means residing on or to be in apparent possession or control of Property;

excessive accumulation of material, including but not limited to:
building materials, appliances, household goods, boxes, tires, vehicle
parts, garbage or refuse, whether of any apparent value or not;

loose litter, garbage, construction debris or refuse whether located in a
storage area, collection area or elsewhere on the land;

damaged, dismantled or derelict vehicles or Motor Vehicles, whether
insured or registered, or not;

smelly or messy compost heaps;

grass or weeds higher than 15 centimetres;
production of excessive dust, dirt or smoke;
production of any generally offensive odours;

any open structure or container placed in, on or over land which exposes
any surrounding area to automotive fluids, including but not limited to,
engine oil, brake fluid or antifreeze;

use of any pesticide or herbicide which has significant detrimental or
environmental effects on surrounding areas;

any tree, shrub, other type of vegetation or any structure:

(i) that obstructs any Sidewalk adjacent to the land;

(ii) thatencroaches onto or covers any Sidewalk;

(iii) that impairs the visibility required for safe traffic flow at any
intersection adjacent to the land or access to the land; or

(iv) that has any rot or other deterioration;

the failure to destroy prohibited weeds, control noxious weeds, or
prevent the spread or scattering of nuisance weeds, in accordance with
Weed Control Act, S.A. 2008, ¢ W-5.1;

any publicly accessible excavation, ditch, drain or standing water that
could pose a danger to the public; any construction project or activity
not completed within 5 years of the date the building permit for the
project or activity was issued by the Town or, if no permit was issued or
required, within 5 years of starting the construction project or activity;
and

any conditions likely to attract wild animals, pests, other vermin, or
domestic animals not associated with the subject Property.

Bylaw No. XX-2025

Page 3 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAO'S
Initials



2.25

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

2.37

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 4 of 18

Own(s) means:
(a) in the case of land, to be registered under the Land Titles Act, R.S.A. 2000,
c. L-4, as the owner of the fee simple estate in a parcel of land; or

(b) in the case of personal property, to be in lawful possession or have the right
to exercise control over it or to be the registered owner of it;

Panhandling means to ask for a gratuitous donation of money, food, or goods of
any kind, whether by spoken or printed word, or bodily gesture, but does not
include the solicitation of charitable donations allowed or authorized pursuant to
the Charitable Fundraising Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. C-9, or any other legislation
permitting the solicitation of charitable donations;

Person means any individual, firm, partnership, association, corporation, trustee,
executor, administrator or other legal representative;

Pest(s) means any animal, insect, bird, rodent, or other organism, including their
larvae or eggs, that is or may become injurious, noxious, or troublesome to
humans, animals, property, agriculture, or the environment. This includes, but is
not limited to, mosquitoes, rodents, insects, and any species designated as a pest
under applicable provincial or federal legislation.

Property means in the case of land, a parcel of land including any Buildings;

Public Place means any place or any part of a Building, structure, or other
enclosed area to which members of the public have access as of right or by
express or implied invitation;

Public Vehicle means a bus, taxi, rideshare or other vehicle that is used to
transport members of the public for a fee;

Recreational Vehicle means vehicle designed to provide temporary living,
sleeping or eating accommodation for travel, vacation, seasonal Camping or
recreational use.

Residence means a place used wholly or partly by a person as a permanent
private dwelling, including a structure or land adjacent to the private dwelling that
is used for the convenience or enjoyment of the occupants of the dwelling;

Sidewalk means that part of the Highway especially adapted to the use of or
ordinarily used by pedestrians and includes that part of a Highway between the
curb line or, where there is no curb line, the edge of the roadway, and the adjacent
property line whether it is paved or unpaved;

Smoke or Smoking mean to inhale, exhale, burn, or have control over a lighted
cigarette, cigar, pipe, hookah pipe, or other lighted or heated device or apparatus
designed to burn or heat tobacco, Cannabis, shisha or any other weed or
substance for the purpose of inhaling or tasting its emissions, as well as the
emissions themselves;

Temporary Shelter means a tent that is set up in an area where overnight
Camping is legally permitted or a Recreational Vehicle or other vehicle that is
parked in an area where overnight Camping is legally permitted; and for clarity,
shall not include any area outside of a tent, Recreational Vehicle, or other vehicle
located in a legally permitted campsite;

Town means Town of Tofield;

Mayor's
Initials

CAOQ'S
Initials



2.38

2.39

2.40

2.41

2.42

2.43

Unsightly means:

(a) A Property that, because of its condition or the accumulation of refuse,
debris, materials, or other items, is detrimental to the use and
enjoyment of the surrounding area or neighboring properties;

(b) In respect of a structure, includes a structure whose exterior shows
signs of significant physical deterioration, serious disregard for general
maintenance, upkeep, or repair, or which constitutes a Nuisance;

(c) In respect of land, includes land that shows signs of a serious disregard
for general maintenance or upkeep, or which constitutes a Nuisance; or

(d) In an Unsightly condition within the meaning of the MGA, section 541(c).

Utility Trailer means a trailer designed to be towed by a Motor Vehicle and used
for the transportation of goods, materials, or equipment. This includes, but is not
limited to, open or flatbed trailers with or without side rails, and enclosed trailers
with fixed sides, a roof and door.

Vape or Vaping means:

(a) inhaling or exhaling the vapour, emissions or aerosol produced by an
Electronic Smoking Device or similar device containing Cannabis or
nicotine; or

(b) holding or otherwise having control of an Electronic Smoking Device that
is producing vapour, emissions or aerosol from Cannabis or nicotine.

Violation Ticket means a ticket issued pursuant to the Provincial Offences
Procedures Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. P-34;

Wildlife means non-domesticated animals, or an animal that is wild by nature and
living in its natural habitat, but does not include feral cats or birds; and

Workplace includes the whole or any part of a building, structure, vehicle, or
passenger conveyance in which a Business is carried on but excludes any part

which constitutes public space or is a private Residence.
PART Il - PUBLIC BEHAVIOURS

A Person shall not leave any garbage, litter, or other refuse in a Public Place, exceptin
areceptacle designated and intended for such use.

A Person shall not place, depaosit, or throw upon or into any Motor Vehicle any leaflet,
pamphlet, poster, handbill, flyer, or any paper containing printed or written matter,
whether advertising or not, with the exception of Municipal Tags or Violation Tickets
issued pursuant to lawful authority.

A Person shall not deposit any leaflet, pamphlet, poster, handbill, flyer, or any paper
containing printed or written matter, whether advertising or not, on a Property where
signs or notices have been posted and are clearly visible at the entrance to the
Property, indicating that such material is prohibited or not wanted.

A Person shall not urinate or defecate in a Public Place or on Property except in a
facility designated and intended for such use.

A Person shall not spit at or on any Person or in any Public Place.
A Person shall not throw or propel an object, or act in any other way, in a Public Place

that is reasonably likely to cause injury to another Person, damage to Property, or
damage to any Person’s personal property.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 5 of 18

Mayor’
Initials

CAQ
Initials



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

172.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

No Person shall threaten or intimidate another Person in a Public Place or use an
object for the purpose of threatening or intimidating another Person in a Public Place.

No Person located in a Public Place shall disturb the peace and enjoyment of other
members of the public by:

10.1 screaming, shouting, or using loud, abusive or obscene language;
10.2 beingintoxicated by alcohol or another drug or substance; or
10.3 performing an Indecent Act.

Specific to section 10.1, in determining whether a sound is reasonably likely to disturb
the peace, an Enforcement Officer may consider the following criteria:

11.1 Type, volume, and duration of the sound;
11.2 Time of day and day of week; and
11.3 Nature and use of the surrounding area.

No Person shall damage, destroy, deface, tamper, or otherwise interfere with any
Property or a Person’s personal property.

No Person shall stand or put their feet on the top of a table or surface of any table, bench,
planter, sculpture, or other fixture in a Public Place.

A Person shall not participate in a fight or other similar physical confrontation in a
Public Place; this prohibition does not apply to participants of an event held under the
authority of a sporting commission established pursuant to the MGA, section 535.1,
to the extent that such eventisin full compliance with any regulations or requirements
established by the sporting commission.

No Person shall Bully any Person in any Public Place.

No Person shall participate in or encourage by verbal or other means the Bullying of
any Person in any Public Place.

No parent or guardian shall allow, permit, or encourage a Minor under their care to
engage in the Bullying or Cyber Bullying of another person or group of persons.

Specific to sections 15-17 of this Bylaw, nothing in this Bylaw shall prevent an
Enforcement Officer from directing that an offence under this Bylaw be considered for
alternative dispute resolution, as administered by the Town from time to time.

A Person shall not Loiter in a Public Place.
A Person shall not engage in Panhandling.
A Person shall not create or apply Graffiti.

If an Enforcement Officer has a reasonably held belief that a Person is in possession of
Graffiti Instruments for the purpose of creating or applying Graffiti, the Enforcement
Officer may direct that the Person leave the area or surrender the Graffiti Instruments to
the Enforcement Officer. Failure or refusal to follow the directions of an Enforcement
Officer constitutes an offence under this Bylaw.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 6 of 18

CAO'S
Initials

Mayor’s
Initials




23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Every Person who Owns or may Occupy a Property shall ensure that Graffiti placed on
their Property is removed, painted over, or otherwise permanently blocked from public
view within 72 hours or as directed by an Enforcement Officer.

No Person shall, except in accordance with a liquor license, sell or consume Liquorin a
Public Place except:

(a) Where it is a temporary campsite in an approved campsite location; or
(b) Where a special event permit and liquor license has been issued.

PART lll - CAMPING

This Part does not apply to any approved Camping within the Town of Tofield Municipal
Campground.

No Person shall reside or Camp in any Public Place in the Town unless special
permission has been granted in writing, subject to conditions, by the Town Chief
Administrative Officer or their designate.
No Person shall reside or Camp in any accessory building, Camping Unit, Temporary
Shelter, or tent, on private Property for a period longer than seven (7) consecutive days
or exceeding twenty-one (21) total days in a calendar year, unless special permission
has been granted in writing, subject to conditions by the Chief Administrative Officer or
their designate.

PART 11l - PROPERTY MAINTENANCE AND NUISANCE
A Person shall not cause or permit a Nuisance to exist on land they Own or Occupy.
A Person who causes a Nuisance or permits Property they Own or Occupy to be used
S0 as to cause a Nuisance shall as soon as practicable abate the Nuisance and cause

to be abated the activity which causes the Nuisance.

A Person shall not allow Property which they Own or Occupy to be or to become
Unsightly.

A Person shall not Own or Occupy a Property or allow in or on the Property, the
accumulation of:

31.1 anything that creates an odour, emission, smoke, vapour, dust or other airborne
matter that is reasonably likely to disturb another individual; or

31.2 any material likely to attract animals, pests, or Wildlife; or
31.3 animal remains, parts of animal remains, or animal feces.

A Person shall not have or allow the following to accumulate on a Property which they
Own or Occupy such that the accumulation is visible to a Person outside the Property:

32.1 loose garbage or bagged garbage;

32.2 bottles, cans, boxes, or packaging materials;
32.3 household furniture or other household goods;
32.4 automobile parts;

32.5 parts of or disassembled machinery, equipment or appliances; or

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 7 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAO'S
Initials




33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

32.6 yard waste, including grass, tree and hedge cuttings, leaves and other refuse.

A Person shall not cause or permit a compost container or heap to be located on a
Property they Own or Occupy within 3 metres of any residential Building located on an
adjacent Property.

A Person shall maintain any roof or awning that extends over a Sidewalk from a Building
they Own or Occupy free of snow and ice.

A Person shall not cause or permit any rainwater, downspout or eaves trough to be
directed from a Property they Own or Occupy onto:

35.1 an adjacent Property; or

35.2 anadjacentalley, street, Sidewalk or other Public Place in any manner that is likely
to cause damage or to create a danger.

No Person shall park a Motor Vehicle on a front or side yard in any residential area except
on a designated driveway, created for that purpose.

No Person shall park or store more than 1 Recreational Vehicle and 1 Utility Trailerin a
Property in a residential area.

No Person shall cause, permit or allow for the storage, repair, parking, cleaning,
maintenance, collection or servicing of mechanical equipment including but not limited
to bulldozers, graders, backhoes, pay loaders, cranes, tractors, semi-trailers, semi
trucks, or similtar heavy equipment within a residential area.

A Person who Owns or may Occupy a vacant lot:

39.1 Mustensure that all parts of a Property or premise are kept free from including but
not limited to, garbage, refuse, furniture, household goods, appliances, yard
waste, animal remains, animal waste, metal, lumber, and any other waste
material, manmade or natural;

39.2 Must ensure that all parts of a Property or premise are kept free from any other
matter that creates unpleasant odours, or is likely to attract pests, or which may
create a fire hazard or a health and safety risk,

39.3 Must ensure that all parts of a Property or premise are kept free from dilapidated,
collapsed, unsafe or unfinished structures,

39.4 Must ensure that no vehicle, trailer, boat, machinery, or any other mechanical
equipment, (or remnant or part or disassembly of such items) are parked, stored,
or kept on a Property in a residential area.

A Person shall reasonably remove snow and ice from any Sidewalk adjacent to land they
Own or Occupy within 72 hours after the snow or ice has been deposited.

If a Person fails to reasonably remove snow and ice from any Sidewalk adjacent to land
they Own or Occupy within 72 hours after the snow or ice has been deposited, the Town
may carry out the removal of snow and ice or contract out the removal of snow and ice,
with all the costs and expenses involved charged to the Person responsible for the
removal and any unpaid costs or expenses shall be added to the tax roll for the Property
to be recovered in accordance with the MGA, section 553.

No Person shall damage any Sidewalk or pavement in the Town whether such Person is
engaged in removing snow, ice, dirt or foreign material from the said Sidewalk or
pavement or not.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 8 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAO'S
Initials



43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

No Person shall remove dirt, debris, or other materials from any Sidewalk by causing
such material to be placed upon any other portion of the Highway or other Public Place
adjacent to the Sidewalk.

No Person shall place, or permit, to be placed, any snow, ice, dirt, debris, or other
material removed from private Property onto the Highways or other Public Places.

A Person may deposit snow or ice that has been removed from a Downtown Core
Sidewalk onto the portion of Highway that is immediately adjacent to the Downtown
Core Sidewalk in question, but may only do so in a manner that does notimpede the flow
of traffic on the Highway, reduce driver visibility, damage, or create a risk of damage to,
Motor Vehicles or endanger Persons travelling upon, or in the vicinity of, the Highway.

No Person shall place, or permit to be placed, any snow, ice, dirt, debris, or other
material removed from their own private Property onto another Person’s Property.

A Person shall maintain any Boulevard adjacent to land they Own or Occupy by:

47.1 Keeping any grass on the Boulevard cut to a length of no more than 15 centimetres;
47.2 Removing any accumulation of fallen leaves or other debris; and

47.3 Notifying the Town if tree maintenance is required.

A Person shall not cause or permit a Nuisance to exist in respect of any Building located
on land they Own or Occupy.

For greater certainty, a Nuisance in respect to a Building means a Building that shows
signs of serious disregard for general maintenance and upkeep, whether it is detrimental
to the surrounding area or not, some examples of which include, but are not limited to,
the following:

49.1 Damage to the Building;
49.2 Building that is rotting or deteriorating; and

49.3 Any inappropriate infiltration of air, moisture, or water into the Building due to
peeling, unpainted or untreated surfaces, missing shingles or other roofing
materials, broken or missing windows or doors, or any other hole or opening in the
Building

If a Building normally intended for human habitation is unoccupied then any door or
window opening in the Building may be covered with a solid piece of wood, but only if the

wood is:

50.1 Installed from the exterior and fitted within the frame of the opening in a watertight
manner;

50.2 Of athickness sufficient to prevent unauthorized entry into the Building;
50.3 Secured in a manner sufficient to prevent unauthorized entry into the Building; and

50.4 Coated with an opaque protective finish in a manner that is not detrimental to the
surrounding area.

Each construction site shall have a waste container to ensure that waste materials are
placed in the container to prevent the material from being blown away from the
construction site.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 9 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAO'S
Initials




52.

53.

54.

§5.

56.

Each construction site or area shall have at least one toilet available to workers.

No Person shall allow loose construction material to be stored or accumulated on a
construction site they Own or Occupy unlessiitis:

53.1 Stacked or stored on the Property in an orderly manner; and

53.2 Not capable of being blown around the construction area or off the construction
site.

A Person shall not conduct any repair work on Motor Vehicles, including mechanical
repairs, autobody work, frame repair, collision repair, auto painting, auto detailing or
modifications to the body or rebuilding of a Motor Vehicle, on any land in a residential
district, unless the activity is authorized pursuant to legislation, and is in full
compliance with applicable approvals, conditions, licenses, and permits.

54.1 This prohibition shall not apply to routine maintenance work performed on any
Motor Vehicles owned, operated, or registered in the name of the Person who
Owns or may Occupy the Property on which the work is being performed,
provided that:

(a) The activity does not create a Nuisance or noise complaints from
neighbours;

(b) There is no escape of offensive, annoying or noxious odors, fumes or
smoke from the Property;

(c) Vehicle fluids, oil, gasoline products or other hazardous materials are
properly stored and disposed of and not swept or washed into lanes,

streets, or down storm sewers;

(d) All discarded vehicle parts and materials are properly stored and
disposed of from the Property;

(e) No power washing of motor or powertrain is performed on the Property;
and

(f) All building and fire code regulations are met.

A Person shall not place, cause, or permit to be placed a refrigerator, freezer, or other
similar appliance on land they Own or Occupy unless effective measures have been

taken to prevent the opening and closing of the appliance.

Without limiting the generality of section 52 of this Bylaw, measures considered to be
effective may include, but are not limited to, the following:

56.1 The removal of the door from the appliance;

56.2 The removal of the door handle mechanism if this prevents opening and closing
of the door;

56.3 The removal of the door hinges;
56.4 The locking of the appliance; or

56.5 Otherwise wrapping or containing the appliance so that the interior is
inaccessible.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 10 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAO'S
Initials



57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

PART IV - NOISE CONTROL

A Person on private Property shall not cause or permit any noise that is reasonably likely
to annoy or disturb the peace of any other Person.

A Person shall not cause or permit Property they Own or Occupy to be used so that

noise from the Property annoys or disturbs the peace of any other Person between the
hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

In determining what sound is reasonably likely to annoy or disturb the peace of others,
consideration may be given to, but is not limited to, the following criteria:

59.1 Type, volume, and duration of the sound;

59.2 Time of day and day of week; and

59.3 Nature and use of the surrounding area.

A Person shall not cause or permit any construction activity on Property they Own or
Occupy between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. on a weekday or between 10:00 p.m. and 9:00
a.m. on a weekend or Holiday.

A Person shall not collect, cause, or permit the collection of garbage with a Motor
Vehicle on or adjacent to any Property zoned for residential use between 9:00 p.m. and

7:00 a.m. on a weekday or between 9:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. on a weekend or Holiday.

If a Motor Vehicle is the cause of any sound that contravenes a provision of this Bylaw,
the owner of that Motor Vehicle is liable for the contravention.

Nothing in this Part prohibits:

63.1 A Person who is an employee or authorized agent of the Town from producing
certain sounds while acting within the scope of their functions, duties, or powers;
or

63.2 Situations where the CAO has issued a permit allowing the production of certain
sounds on whatever conditions the CAO deems appropriate.

PART V - SMOKING AND CANNABIS RESTRICTIONS

Subject to section 63 of this Bylaw, the following are Designated Non-Smoking Area(s)
for the purpose of this Part:

64.1 Public Buildings and those areas within 5 metres of an entrance or exit to a Public
Building;

64.2 Town Buildings, and those areas within 5 metres of an entrance or exit to a Town
Building;

64.3 Public Vehicles and Public Vehicle Shelters; and,

64.4 Workplaces and those areas within 5 metres of an entrance or exit to a Workplace.
The proprietor, owner, or employer of every Designated Non-Smoking Areas shall, if
employees or members of the public from time to time gather to Smoke or Vape at a
location outside the Designated Non-Smoking Areas, ensure that ashtrays are placed

more than 5 metres from the entrance or exit of the Designated Non-Smoking Areas.

No Person shall Smoke or Vape in Designated Non-Smoking Areas.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 11 of 18

CAO'S
Initials

Mayor's
Initials




67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

66.1 The CAO may designate any Public Place, or portion of a Public Place, as a
Designated Non-Smoking Area or as a Smoking area.

66.2 The CAO shall place temporary or permanent signs or other markings identifying a
Designated Non-Smoking Area or Smoking area.

66.3 The CAO may impose any requirements on a Smoking area including, but not
limited to, requirements that the area be enclosed or that no Minors be permitted
within the area.

Notwithstanding section 63 of this Bylaw, a Person may Smoke or Vape in an area
designated as a Smoking area for Cannabis under the provisions of this Bylaw.

A Person who Owns or may Occupy a place where Smoking or Vaping is prohibited by
this Part shall not permit any individual to Smoke, Vape, or use an Electronic Smoking
Device in that place.

Nothing in this Part affects the rights of Indigenous people respecting the ability to
participate in traditional spiritual, cultural, or ceremonial practices.

Subject to the provisions of this section, a Person who Owns or may Occupy a place
where Smoking or Vaping is otherwise prohibited by this Part may permit Smoking or
Vaping in that place when Smoking or Vaping is permitted pursuant to provincial or
federal legislation or powers exercised pursuant to such legislation.

If Smoking or Vaping is permitted pursuant to section 68 of this Bylaw, the Person who
Owns or may Occupy the premises shall ensure that:

71.1 Smoke does not enter any place where Smoking is prohibited;

71.2 Signage is clearly and prominently displayed at each entrance to a place where
Smoking or Vaping is permitted, indicating that Smoking or Vaping is permitted
inside; and

71.3 No Person under the age of 18 years of age is allowed to enter or remain in a place
where Smoking or Vaping is permitted.

Any Building or part of a Building where Cannabis, or anything that will be used as an
ingredient in a Cannabis product, is produced, packaged, labelled, stored, or tested
must be equipped with a system that:

72.1 Prevents the escape of odours associated with Cannabis material to the outdoors;

72.2 Provides natural or mechanical ventilation with sufficient air exchange to provide
clean air in order to prevent smell to neighboring properties; and

72.3 Prevents unauthorized access to the Building or part of the Building where
Cannabis product or material is contained.

Nothing in this Part prohibits a Person from using an Electronic Smoking Device for the
sole purpose of testing the device, or sampling products used with the device, prior to
purchase within a retailer, with the exception of Electronic Smoking Devices that use
Cannabis, which may not be tested within a retailer.

The burden of proving that an exception applies in any particular case under this Part is
on the Person alleging such exception on a balance of probabilities.

No Person shall remove, move, alter, deface, conceal, or destroy any signs or other
markings identifying a Designated Non-Smoking Area or a Smoking area.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 12 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAO'S
Initials



76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

PART VI - ENFORCEMENT

Any Person who contravenes any provisions of this Bylaw is guilty of an offence and liable
upon summary conviction to a specific penalty as set out in Schedule “A” attached
hereto and forming part of this Bylaw. Where no specific penalty is specified, a penalty
of not less than $100.00 and not more than $2,500.00 to be imposed in the discretion of
the Court having jurisdiction, having regard to section 7(i) of the MGA.

An Enforcement Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a Municipal Tagto
any Person who the Enforcement Officer has reasonable and probable grounds to
believe has contravened any provisions of this Bylaw.

Where a Municipal Tag is issued pursuant to this Bylaw, the Person to whom the
Municipal Tag is issued may, in lieu of being prosecuted for the offence, pay the Town
the penalty specified on the Municipal Tag.

If the penalty specified on the Municipal Tag is not paid within the prescribed time, then
an Enforcement Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a Violation Ticket
pursuant to the Provincial Offences Procedure Act.

Notwithstanding anything else in this Bylaw, an Enforcement Officer is hereby
authorized and empowered to immediately issue a Violation Ticket pursuant to the
Provincial Offences Procedures Act, as amended, to any Person who the Enforcement
Officer has reasonable grounds to believe has contravened any provision of this Bylaw.

If a Violation Ticket is issued in respect of an offence, the Violation Ticket may:
81.1 Specify the fine amount established by this Bylaw for the offence; or

81.2 Require a Person to appear in court without the alternative of making a voluntary
payment.

In the case of an offence that is of a continuing nature, a contravention of a provision of
this Bylaw constitutes a separate offence in respect of each day, or part of a day, on
which it continues and a Person guilty of such an offence is liable to a fine in an amount
not less than that established by this Bylaw for each such day.

For the purposes of this Bylaw, an act or omission by an employee or agent of a Person
is deemed also to be an act or omission of the Person if the act or omission occurred
during the employee’s employment with the Person, or during the agent exercising the
powers or performing the duties on behalf of the Person under their agency relationship.

When a corporation commits an offence under this Bylaw, every principal, director,
manager, employee, or agent of the corporation who authorized the act or omission that
constitutes the offence or assented to or acquiesced or participated in the act or
omission that constitutes the offence is guilty of the offence whether or not the
corporation has been prosecuted for the offence.

If a partner in a partnership is guilty of an offence under this Bylaw, each partner in that
partnership who authorized the act or omission that constitutes the offence or assented
to or acquiesced or participated in the act or omission that constitutes the offence is
guilty of the offence.

Notwithstanding anything else in this Bylaw:

86.1 If the CAO or designate believes, on reasonable grounds, that a Person is
contravening any provision of this Bylaw, including where any Property in the Town
is deemed by an Enforcement Officer to be Unsightly, or a Nuisance, the CAO or
designate may, by written order, require any Person responsible for the
contravention to remedy it.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 13 of 18

Mayor's
Initiais

CAO'S
Initials




87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

86.2 The order may:

(a) Direct a Person to stop doing something, or to change the way in which the
Person is doing it;

(b) Direct a Person to take any action or measures necessary to remedy the
contravention of the Bylaw and, if necessary, to prevent a re-occurrence of
the contravention;

() State a time within which the Person must comply with the directions;

(d) State that if the Person does not comply with the directions within a
specified time, the Town will take the action or measure.

In addition to any other relief or enforcement measure that may be taken, if the Chief
Administrative Officer finds that a Person is contravening this Bylaw, the Chief
Administrative Officer may, by written order in accordance with section 545 of the
Municipal Government Act, require any Person responsible for the contravention to
remedy it.

The Town may take whatever action or measures are necessary to remedy a
contravention of this Bylaw, or to prevent re-occurrence of the contravention, if:

88.1 The Town has issued an order pursuant to section 545 of the Municipal
Government Act, as described in section 84 of this Bylaw;

88.2 The order contains a statement providing that if the Person issued the order does
not comply with the directions with a specified time frame, the Town will take the
action or measure at the expense of the Person;

(a) The Person to whom the order is directed has not complied with the order
within the time specified in the order; and

(b) The appeal periods respecting the order have passed or, if an appeal has
been made, the appeal has been decided, and it allows the Town to take
the action or measures.

The expenses and costs of an action or measure taken by the Town under section 86 of
this Bylaw is an amount owing to the Town by the Person who contravened the Bylaw,
and the expenses payable shall include, but are not limited to,

89.1 The administration charge set out in the Fees & Charges Bylaw.

Unpaid expenses and costs referred to in section 87 of this Bylaw may be added to the
tax roll of a parcel of land, if the parcel’s owner contravened this Bylaw and the
contravention occurred on all or a part of the parcelin accordance with the MGA, section
553.

A Person named in and served with an order issued pursuant to this section shall comply
with any action or measure required to be taken within the time specified.

91.1 Anorderissued pursuantto this section may be served in the case of an individual:
(a) By delivering it personally to the individual;

(b) By leaving it for the individual at their apparent place of Residence with
someone who appears to be at least 18 years of age; or

(c) By mail addressed to the individual at their apparent place of Residence or
at any address for the individual on the tax roll of the Town or at the Land
Titles registry;

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 14 of 18

Mayor's
initials

CAO'S
Initials




(d) By posting the notice on the Property.

91.2 Inthe case of a corporation, an order may be served:

(a) By delivering it personally to any director or officer of the corporation;

(b) By delivering it personally to a Person apparently in charge of an office of
the corporation at an address held out by the corporation to be its address;
or

{c) By mail addressed to the registered office of the corporation.

92. No Person shall fail to comply with an order.

93. A Person shall not obstruct or hinder any Person in the exercise or performance of the
Person’s powers pursuant to this Bylaw.

94. Without restricting any other power, duty or function granted by this Bylaw, the CAO
may:

94.1 Carry out any inspections to determine compliance with this Bylaw;
94.2 Take any steps or carry out any actions required to enforce this Bylaw;

94.3 Take any steps or carry out any actions required to remedy a contravention of this
Bylaw;

94.4 Establish investigation and enforcement procedures with respect to residential,
commercial, industrial or other types of property; and such procedures may differ
depending on the type of property in question;

94.5 Establish areas where activities restricted by this Bylaw are permitted;
94.6 Issue permits with such terms and conditions as are deemed appropriate;
94.7 Establish the criteria to be met for a permit pursuant to this Bylaw;

94.8 Delegate any powers, duties or functions under this Bylaw to an employee of the
Town;

94.9 Appointinspectors for the purposes of the Agricultural Pest Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. A-
8.; and

94.10 Appoint inspectors for the purposes of the Weed Control Act, S.A. 2008, ¢ W-5.1.

95. A Person to whom a permit has been issued pursuant to this Bylaw, and any Person
carrying out an activity otherwise regulated, restricted, or prohibited by this Bylaw
pursuant to such permit, shall comply with any terms or conditions forming part of the
permit.

96. A Person shall not make any false or misleading statement or provide any false or
misleading information to obtain a permit pursuant to this Bylaw.

97. If any term or condition of a permit issued pursuant to this Bylaw is contravened, or if a
false or misleading statement or false or misleading information was provided to obtain
the permit, the CAO may immediately cancel the permit.

98. The onus of proving a permit has been issued in relation to any activity otherwise
regulated, restricted, or prohibited by this Bylaw is on the Person alleging the existence
of such a permit on a balance of probabilities.

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 15 of 18

CAOQ'S
Initials

Mayor's
Initials




99.

A copy of a record of the Town, certified by the CAO as a true copy of the original, shall
be admitted in evidence as prima facie proof of the facts stated in the record without
proof of the appointment or signature of the Person signing it.

100. Every provision of this Bylaw is independent of all other provisions and if any provision of
this Bylaw is declared invalid for any reason by a Court of competent jurisdiction, all
other provisions of this Bylaw shall remain valid and enforceable.

101. TheTown, an Enforcement Officer, or any Person who inspects Property under this Bylaw
or any Person who performs work on behalf of the Town is not liable for any damages
caused by the inspection, the work, or disposing of anything referred to in an Order.

PART VIl - REVIEW BY COUNCIL

102. A Person who is issued an order pursuant to section 545 of the Municipal Government
Act, for a contravention of this Bylaw, may by written notice, request Council to review
the order within fourteen (14) days after the date the order is received.

102.1 All written requests for Council to review the order must be accompanied by the
required fee, as outlined in the Fees & Charges Bylaw.

103. After reviewing the order, Council may confirm, vary, substitute or cancel the order.

PART VIl - REVIEW AND REPEAL

104. This Bylaw will be reviewed at any time that Council considers appropriate.

105. The following Bylaws, and their amendments where applicable, are repealed upon
passage of this Bylaw:

105.1 Cannabis Bylaw No. 1313
105.2 Community Standards Bylaw No. 1308
PART IX - EFFECTIVE DATE

106. This Bylaw will come into full force and effect on the date of passing of the third and final
reading.

READ for a first time this Day of , 2025 A.D.

READ for a second time this Day of ,2025 A.D.

UNANIMOUS CONSENT RECEIVED FOR THIRD AND FINAL READING

READ for a third time this Day of ,2025 A.D.

Mayor

Chief Administrative Officer

Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 16 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAO'S
initials




Schedule “A”

Penality Penalty Penalty

Section Description of Offence 1° 20 3
Offence Offence Offence
3 Littering 250 500 1000
4 Distributing flyers on Motor Vehicles 150 250 500
5 Distributing flyers at Property 150 250 500
6 Urinating or defecating in a Public Place 500 750 1000
7 Spitting in a Public Place 250 500 1000
8 Throwing or propelling an object in a Public Place 500 750 1000
9 Intimidate or threaten in a Public Place 500 750 1000
10 Cause a disturbance in a Public Place 250 500 1000
12 Damage/destroy/deface/tamper or otherwise interfere with 250 500 1000
Property
13 Stang/place feet on table/bench/planter/sculpture/fixture in a 250 500 1000
Public Place
14 Fighting in a Public Place 250 500 1000
15 Communicate directly or indirectly in a manner to Bully 250 500 1000
16 Encourage or support in the act of Bullying 250 500 1000
17 Parent/Guardian allow, permit/encourage a Minor to Bully 250 500 1000
19 Loitering in a Public Place 250 500 1000
20 Panhandling 250 500 1000
21 Applying or creating Graffiti 500 1000 2500
22 Failing to follow directions regarding Graffiti Instruments 250 500 1000
Failure to remove, paint over, or block from public view Graffiti
23 within 72 hours or as directed by an Enforcement Officer 250 500 1000
24 Consume or sell Liquor in a Public Place 250 500 1000
26 Camping in a Public Place 500 750 1000
27 Camping on private Property 500 750 1000
28 Cause/permit a Nuisance on Property 250 500 1000
30 Unsightly Property 250 500 1000
31 Accumulation of prohibited material on Property 250 500 1000
32 Accumulation of prohibited material visible outside Property 250 500 1000
33 Improper Location of Compost
34 Failing to maintain a roof or awning clear of snow and ice
35 Improperly direct water, eaves trough or downspout
Parking a Motor Vehicle not on driveway 250 500 1000
Storage of excess Recreational Vehicle and/or Utility Trailer 250 500 1000
Heavy Equipment in residential area 250 500 1000
Material on vacant lot 250 500 1000
Failing to remove snow and ice from Sidewalks 250 500 1000
Damage any Sidewalk or pavement in the Town 250 500 1000
Pl.acmg dirt, debris, or othgr materials upon any portion of the 250 500 1000
Highway or any other Public Place
Placing snow, ice, dirt, debris, or other materials upon any portion
of the Highway or any other Public Place 250 500 1000
Place snow, ice, or debris on others Property 250 500 1000
Failing to maintain Boulevards 250 500 1000
Nuisance Building 250 500 1000
Failing to properly secure unoccupied Building 250 500 1000
No waste container on construction site 500 1000 2000
Construction site without toilet 500 1000 2000
Construction material not neatly stacked or stored 500 1000 2000
Waste material blown off construction site 500 1000 2000
Repairing Motor Vehicles in a residential area 250 500 1000
Failing to secure appliances 250 500 1000
Person causing excessive noise 250 500 1000
Person allowing excessive noise 250 500 1000
Prohibited construction activity 250 500 1000
Prohibited garbage collection 250 500 1000
Motor Vehicle noise 250 500 1000
Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 17 of 18

Mayor's
Initials

CAO'S
Initials



Section Description of Offence Penallty Penalty Penalty 3"

1t 2nd Offence
Offence Offence

Smo!<eNape within 5 metres of an exit or entrance of a 250 500 1000
Public Place

Sm'ok.eNape within 5 metres of an exit or entrance of a Town 250 500 1000
Building

Smoke/Vape in Public Vehicles or Public Vehicle Shelter 250 500 1000
Smoke/Vape within 5 metres of an exit or entrance of a 250 500 1000
Workplace

Proprietor/employer fail to place ashtray in a Public Place 250 500 1000
more than 5 metres from entrance or exit

Smoke/Vape in a Public Place 250 500 1000
Smoke/Vape Cannabis in a Public Place 250 500 1000
Owner allow Person to Smoke in a Designated Non-Smoking 250 500 1000
Area

Allow Smoke to enter area where Smoking is prohibited 250 500 1000
Fail to display signs where Smoking is permitted 250 500 1000
Allow a Person under.the.age of j8 into orremainina 250 500 1000
location where Smoking is permitted

Failure to have filter allowing escape of odour 250 500 1000
Remove, alter, destroy No Smoking/Smoking Signs 250 500 1000
Failure to comply with an order 750 1000 1500
Obstruction of Enforcement 500 1000 1500
Fail to comply with conditions of a permit 250 500 1000
Bylaw No. XX-2025 Page 18 of 18

CAO'S
Initials

Mayor's
Initials




